
MINUTES 
 

VILLAGE OF CHESTER PLANNING BOARD 
 

JUNE 25, 2019 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
PRESENT:  Richard RAMSDELL, Chairman 
   Robert JANKELUNAS, Member 
   Anthony LASPINA, Member 
   Vincent RAPPA, Co-Chairman 
   Gene WINTERS, Member 
 

ALSO PRESENT: John ORR, Code Enforcement Officer 
   Mark EDSALL, Planning Board Engineer 
   Harold PRESSBERG, Planning Board Attorney 
 

**** PUBLIC HEARING **** 

Chairman Ramsdell opened the Elmwood Park Senior Apartment Complex Site Plan Public Hearing at 7:00 PM. 
 

P. Project # 13-08 Project Name:  ELMWOOD PARK APARTMENTS 

Applicant/Owner: John Sorrentino 
Location:  Elm Street / Main Street (SBL 111-2-7.1 & 3 / RS-B1 Zones) 
Re:   Proposed construction of a Senior apartment complex 

 
Mark Siemers, Engineer, Pietrzak & Pfau, provided an overview of the project: 
 The proposed project encompasses 2 parcels – one in the B-1 Zone and one in the RS Zone; 
 The proposed project consists of 2-2 story buildings – Building 1 contains 6-1-bedroom units and 6-2-

bedroom units; Building 2 contains 4-1-bedroom units and 4-2-bedroom units; 
 There will be a 650 square foot community space next to building 2; 
 The proposed buildings were lowered from 3 stories to 2 stories to alleviate sight impacts; 
 The proposed project is a Senior Housing Development, which is a Special Permitted Use subject to 

Authorization and Site Plan Approval by the Planning Board in both Zones; 
 The proposed project would be accessed off Elm Street; 
 The proposed project would use Village water / sewer, connecting to existing services on Elm Street; 
 Stormwater remains the same as previously noted on the site plan – water will flow to a dry pond and 

into the drainage down Elm Street and connect to the existing drains along Elm and Walnut Streets; 
 The proposed sidewalks will connect to the existing Village sidewalks along Route 94 and Main Street; 
 The project was reviewed at the April 8, 2019, Village Board meeting, and the Village Board adopted a 

resolution that the location and general layout of the proposed Elmwood Park Senior Housing 
Apartments Site Plan complies with the intent of §98-23.1 of the Village Code pertaining to Senior 
Citizen Housing special use permits; 

 The Village Board referred the site plan approval and special permit application for the proposed 
Elmwood Park Senior Housing Apartments to the Planning Board for environmental review under 
SEQRA, and site plan and special permit review pursuant to §98-23.1 of the Village Code; 

 One of the conditions of the Village Board’s approval was the project be deed restricted to ensure it 
remains Senior Housing, which is being drafted by the Applicant’s attorney. 

 
Email from David Stevenson, dated April 23, 2019, read into the record (copy attached). 
Letter from The Preservation Collective, Inc., dated June 25, 2019, read into the record (copy attached). 
 
As there were no questions or comments from the Planning Board members, Chairman Ramsdell opened 
the Public Hearing for public comments/questions: 
 
 Gordon Shehab, 68 High Street, Chester, NY: How wide is the driveway going to be in that smaller 

section – the first section? 
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Mark Siemers: The driveway would be 30 feet wide 
Gordon Shehab:  How wide is the property – that lot? 
Mark Siemers:  advised he believes 50 feet wide. 
Gordon Shehab, 68 High Street, Chester, NY:  As Dave mentioned 98-23-1(C), Maximum, shall not 
cover more than 50 percent of the lot area with impervious surface. 
 
Response 1:  The impervious coverage for the total project is 41.2%.  This coverage has been 
calculated from the total area as the lot line between both parcels is being deleted.  
 
Chairman Ramsdell: Ok 
 
 

 Karen McGovern, 19 Elm Street, Chester, NY:  I have been here for about 12 years, and the 
neighborhood has been changing pretty quickly and dramatically, so I’m concerned about 3 things – 
water pressure has significantly decreased in the last 2 years.  I figured it was those new condos that 
went up – a bunch of new housing.  Will the water supply be affected negatively again?  I don’t know if 
anybody else has had that experience, but my water pressure is terrible right now, so water is a 
concern.  Sewer is a concern.  Driving, parking, transport – it’s a tiny little block Elm and Main.  It’s also 
exceedingly dangerous and without appropriate build up in terms of infrastructure and better roads.  
We’re talking about how many people?  More than twenty?  They all have cars.  It’s difficult for me to 
envision how that would work.  I think it would pose a terrible safety hazard especially at the intersection 
of Main and Elm. 
 
Response 2:  The proposed water connection has been designed to meet all Stated and County 
Requirements.  As part of the design, hydrant testing was performed in the immediate area to confirm 
adequate water demand and pressures during both peak flow and fire flow demands.  The total 
anticipated daily water usage for senior housing is 3,300 gpd which equates to seven 4-bedroom 
dwellings.  Sewer is part of the Moodna Sewer District.  There is currently adequate capacity in the 
Moodna Sewer District. 
 
The total anticipated peak hour trip generation is four (4) trips/hr entering and eleven (11) trips/hr 
existing in the A.M. and nine (9) trips/hr entering and six (6) trips/hr existing in the P.M.  A full traffic 
study has been completed and updated to further address, including the intersection of Elm Street and 
Main Street.  
 
Chairman Ramsdell: Thank you. 
Chairman Ramsdell: Mark, I was going to ask if you knew how many houses there were up Elm Street. 
 
There are thirteen (13)  houses on Elm Street from Main Street up to the intersection with Walnut Street.   
 
Mark Siemers: I don’t know. 
Karen McGovern:  It’s about 12, 13, 14. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  No, it’s more than that. 
Karen McGovern:  Just on one side, I mean. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Because we went through that on a previous application.  This property has been 
part of an application for about 40 years. 

 Marion Sangrillo, Chester Resident:  Do I understand that the outlet on 94 is just for – not for vehicles. 
Mark Siemers:  That is correct. 
Marion Sangrillo:  So, all the vehicles from those apartments – whatever – are going to enter and exit off 
of Elm Street.  And, like she said, getting from Elm Street onto Main Street is very hazardous.  You can’t 
see quite often.  They park so close to the white lines and even with that, if it’s a truck, you still can’t see.  
So, I think it’s really dangerous with the amount of traffic that’s going to be there. 
 
Response 3:  As stated above, the total anticipated peak hour trip generation is four (4) trips/hr entering 
and eleven (11) trips/hr existing in the A.M. and nine (9) trips/hr entering and is six (6) trips/hr existing in 
the P.M.    Traffic study and update address the Elm Street and Main Street intersection. 
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Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 

 Anthony Quinn, 77 Main Street, Chester, NY:   I want to follow up with Gordon’s comments and David’s 
concerning the impervious surface because I’m going to anticipate their next thing is going to say it’s a 
B1 zone and B1 standards are less – it’s only 25% - maybe 30, but I just want to bring up § 98-7(D) says 
where a district boundary divides a lot in single ownership, the regulations for either portion of the lot 
may, at the owner's discretion, extend not more than 30 feet beyond the boundary line of the district.  
So, how long is the road?  More than 30 feet I think – I’m asking. 

 
Response 4:  The total length of the access drive within the RS District is approximately 142 feet.  
Senior Housing use, including all access drives, is allowed in both the B-1 and RS Zoning Districts.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  The driveway? 
Anthony Quinn:  Yeah.  How long is the road into the place?  It’s gotta be at least 100 feet.  Going 
across the lot. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  135.61 
Anthony Quinn:  So, that would violate this never mind the character of the neighborhood.  I agree with 
all that.  I tried that for something else I got involved with and that doesn’t seem to matter.  I mean 
character, we’ll touch on that a little bit.  You have a row of old 1800’s - 1900’s houses and you’re going 
to slam a driveway through a building lot with a bunch of tall lamp posts.  The building itself might be in 
character, but the driveway that’s on a lot next to houses is not.  I think that sums it up.  That’s going to 
be a big thing for them to get around unless you guys change the law again on it. 
 
Response 5:  The access drive will conform to Village St. Standards and will create an “intersection” to 
stay in character with the existing neighborhood.  There is no proposed lighting along the access drive. 
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 

 Ben Ostrer, 111 Main Street, Chester, NY:  My office is next door to the project site.  My wife owns the 
building.  She’s here too.  Is this a Public Hearing on the site plan itself? 
 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  Site plan and special permit. 
Ben Ostrer:  So, one comment which we raised when Jay and I were here at the Village Board meeting.  
The size of the units doesn’t appear to comport with senior housing.  If you scale the buildings out as 
you scale the 650 SF, these look like units that are approximately the size of three-bedroom units at 
Whispering Hills, not one and two-bedroom senior citizen units that would typically be 1000 feet or less.  
The size of the building, the units in the building, would appear to be proposing 1200 SF single and 
perhaps 17 or 1800 square foot two-bedrooms, which means they’re probably two bedrooms and three 
bedrooms, not one bedroom and two-bedroom.  So, without this Board seeing floor plans and what the 
designs of these units are, I think this is – they’re incubating a plan that they’re going to say won’t serve 
seniors because of the second-floor units.  They haven’t said how many will be handicap accessible 
units.  I’ve heard, from conversations with people, that all of the ground floor units are going to be 
handicap accessible, but the regulations only require 20% of the units, which would be 4 units out of the 
20.  And another concern is many of the houses that are below grade, including ours, have stone 
foundations and they’re proposing a dry pond.  We know a dry pond isn’t dry all the time.  They’re going 
to be surcharging the ground by collecting water right behind what was Janet Writer’s house and some 
of the other houses and you don’t know where the water flows underground, but if they can contain the 
drainage appropriately, I’m not aware of any application in a residential district or adjacent to residential 
properties where they use the dry pond as a means of taking care of storm water.  If it’s a sand filter – 
whether there’s going to be a defined barrier or not.  But the biggest concern is saying it’s senior 
housing and building units that are really not designed for seniors seems like an accident waiting to 
happen.  That we can’t rent them because of the price we have to get, and we can’t get seniors to move 
into second floor apartments that are walk up.  People look for ranch houses, they look for ground floor 
apartments.  It’s truly not designed for seniors if it’s going to be second floor walk-up and the size that 
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they’re proposing.  So, before this Board were to take any action, I’d encourage you to take a look at 
what the floor plans are and if the apartments shrink, then, as Ms. Schuh recognized in her letter, the 
amount of area that has to be disturbed for the footprint of the building and the amount of impervious 
roof surface and the like will also shrink, which would reduce potential impacts.  And, again, I’m troubled 
by – we have a lot of people – the approval for our unit – we enter one driveway and exit the other 
driveway and that left turn off Elm, if there’s any size of a vehicle.  I mean, a big SUV up next to that 
striped area.  We’re going to have to lose some on street parking if we’re going to increase the amount 
of utility of that intersection, so there should be something that the developer does to replace the street 
parking that we’re inevitably going to have to lose because we’re going to have to lose a space or two 
on Main Street and certainly have no parking on Elm Street near that intersection.  And I don’t think they 
have any way of replacing those parking spaces – either off site or on site.  I just encourage you to take 
a much harder look on this.  I don’t think they’re really sincere about the senior citizens and, in my 
experience, a deed restriction is not adequate to enforce it.  Who has the right to enforce the deed 
restriction anyway?  Who’s it in favor of?  And if the person who it’s in favor of decides they don’t want to 
have an empty apartment building, then the deed restriction gets waived – gets extinguished.  I don’t 
draw any comfort from the fact that they’re willing to put a deed restriction in.  A conservation easement 
that’s enforced by some third party – where they couldn’t add a story or they couldn’t replace – might be 
something that would be more workable, but 20 units of the size that they’re proposing is just not a 
senior citizen housing development to me. 
 
Response 6:   These apartment units will be market rate senior housing; not State or Federal funded 
senior housing, so the square footage proposed are preferred square footages.  All handicapped units 
will be accessible from the first floor.  All units will be slab on grade.  
 
A full Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) has been prepared.  This plan has been designed 
to collect, treat, and attenuate stormwater before discharging off-site.  This will be accomplished by 
constructing a dry pond.  These facilities have been designed for multiple storm events up to the 100 
year storm.   
 
On-site parking is proposed for the entire project.  The plan proposes 1.5 space per unit and 0.75 
spaces per unit for guests, for a total of 45 parking spaces.  No off-site parking (on street) is anticipated.  
 
With regard to deed restriction issues, see Planning Board Attorney Pressburg’s response below.  
 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  To give you some solace, the Certificate of Occupancy is 
going to limit this to Senior Housing.  And there are requirements that they provide annual updates to 
the Building Inspector.  There are enforcement mechanisms built into the Senior Housing Code.  It’s not 
just a deed restriction, it’s a…. 
Ben Ostrer:  I know Harold, but then it becomes the Village participating in an eviction proceeding and 
somebody is living in the apartment and can’t be taken out.  The New York State Legislature just 
expanded tenant’s rights with legislation passed last week, so what you can do to a 50-year-old who’s 
living in that apartment as opposed to a 55-year-old and I don’t know that we have a full schedule of 
what’s the definition of Senior Citizen unit in our Village. 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  We can look.  I’m just trying to let you know that it’s not just 
a deed restriction, it’s part of the Certificate of Occupancy. 
Ben Ostrer:  And bedrooms that are supposed to be dens become bedrooms  
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  Well, that’s another issue…. 
Ben Ostrer:  You issue Certificates of Occupancy for 2-bedroom unit and there’s 3 bedrooms, but there’s 
no closet. 
 
 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  That’s another issue, right?  I think the Board will take you 
up on that issue.  I just wanted to advise regarding some of the enforcement mechanisms. 
 
Response 7:  Units must conform with building permit and certificate of occupancy.  A change in the 
number of bedrooms from either would be a violation and subject to code enforcement. 
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 Chairman Ramsdell:  Sir? 
 Steven Keahon, Chester Resident:  My question was the project that happened before this one – 

obviously we’re not talking about that tonight – was intended for Senior Housing and then it turned out it 
wasn’t Senior Housing because there wasn’t a market from everything I’ve heard.  So, my question is 
what all of a sudden changed that we all of a sudden have a market for Senior Housing now if it didn’t 
work over at the other street. 

 
Response 8:  As John Orr states below, another project - Meadow Hill, changed from Senior 
Condominiums to Apartments.  The developer believes there is a market for market rate senior housing.  
Demand will dictate market.   

 
 

Chairman Ramsdell:  I think our Attorney just pretty much commented on that. 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  I didn’t comment on whether there was a market.  I 
commented on…. 
CEO John Orr:  I’ll just clarify the difference.  Meadow Hill when they were in front of us was for Senior 
Condominiums – not Senior Apartments and that was prior to the market tanking on everything.  So, 
that’s why that went from condominiums to apartments.   
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you John.  Thank you 

 Ben Ostrer, 111 Main Street, Chester, NY:  But they haven’t done any needs study or any research as to 
what the need or utility would be?  What market study? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  For Seniors? 
 
Ben Ostrer:  In Monroe there was a proposal for Senior Housing and the Planning Board there required 
a market study to make sure that there was going to be a sufficient demand at the price level that they 
were intending to…  You know, affordable is one thing.  If it’s market rent, they need a study to 
demonstrate whether they’re going to be able to fill it or not. 
 
Response 9:  A market study is not required in the Village of Chester Code as is in the Town of Monroe. 
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 

 Elizabeth Reilly, Village of Chester Resident:  I have a question or concern with the signage that would 
be placed for the project.  And I know this has been brought up before regarding entrance or exit from 
Main Street.  I just feel as Ben had said that there should be some sort of an entrance from Main Street.  
I believe there’s a curb cut there from DOT many years ago. 

 
Response 10:  Sign location and details will be provided on final plan and will be located along the 
access drive.  The sign will conform to applicable zoning requirements.  There is no proposed access to 
NYS Route 94.  DOT restrictions and access width restrictions will not allow.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Which one are you talking about now?  On Main Street? 
Elizabeth Reilly:  Yes, on 94.  So, if there’s the curb cut there and it was usable when it was a private 
home and a beauty parlor, nursery.  Why can’t that be utilized, and the project would have to do 
whatever is needed to make that usable?  If it’s because DOT won’t permit that, is there a letter on file 
stating that?  And also, with the sewer concern, would a pump be needed to take that from – would it 
come down the driveway of Elm Street and then have, I don’t think it’s gravity, up to Walnut?  I don’t 
know if anything would be needed there.  From Walnut, it’s all downhill, but that’s a concern I have. 
 
Response 11:  Along with DOT restrictions property access along NYS Route 94 is not wide enough to 
allow for adequate width of 30 feet.  All sanitary sewer proposed are gravity with no pump stations.  
Connection will be directly into existing gravity sewer in Elm Street.  That sewer runs northwest down 
Elm Street and then down Davis Way.   
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Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  We did go for some years now we’ve gone around and round with 
DOT about vehicular access from Main Street, and their position was that can’t happen. 
Elizabeth Reilly:  Is there something in writing to that effect? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I’m sure there is, yeah. 
Elizabeth Reilly:  If I could FOIL a copy, I will. 
Karen McGovern, 19 Elm Street, Chester, NY:  For clarification, I’m sorry, what can’t happen? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Vehicular access from that narrow strip of land that comes out on Main Street.  
John I think you know more about that. 
CEO John Orr:  I remember seeing something.  I’ll have to go back into the original files. 
David Stevenson, 16 Elm Street, Chester, NY:  I think their concern was that the sight lines for people 
who are heading north coming around what’s…. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  That curve 
David Stevenson:  Most people coming out might be broadsided. 
Elizabeth Reilly:  But if something is needed, it would be up to the developer to improve that 
infrastructure whether it’s a traffic light or a blinking light.  Isn’t it generally up to the…? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  So close to the intersection of Academy that that wouldn’t be approved.  Not by us, 
but by DOT.   
Elizabeth Reilly:  Well, there might have to be a couple traffic lights.  I mean there are other intersections 
in other municipalities I’m sure that…. 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  94 is a State road, so the State DOT would have to approve 
a traffic light. 
Elizabeth Reilly:  Right 
Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  They had to adhere to a design standard to approve that 
traffic light at Academy and Main Street. 
Elizabeth Reilly:  As it is now, correct?  With development going into that area…. 
Audience Member:  Maybe it’s just an entrance only 
Elizabeth Reilly:  Exactly.  And the signage.  I’d also like to know about.  When I raised the question a 
couple years ago, I was told whatever the Village allows, which could be something the size of Academy 
Hill Apartments, which would really have a negative effect on that historic neighborhood. 
 
Response 12:  Sign location and details will be provided on final plan and will be located along the 
access drive.  The sign will conform to applicable zoning requirements.   
 

 Chairman Ramsdell:  Yes, you had your hand up. 
 
Alex Batane, Chester Resident:   So, this project or maybe not this project – another project, but this has 
been going on for so many years now that it’s beginning to be repetitious.  I’m not familiar with all the 
legal technicalities here that are required to put it in, whether it’s an apartment complex or senior 
housing – whatever it is and I certainly don’t want to begrudge the owner of his investment, but I have to 
tell you – like I said, I’m not looking at the legal technicalities here, but the real life technicalities are that 
if you look at Academy Avenue between 3 and 5 o’clock the line is all the way down to the traffic light.  
It’s the worst intersection we have in Chester.  The speed is too heavy at 30 miles an hour coming 
around that bend by the stores there – by the florist shop.  You cannot get out of Elm Street for a long 
time.  I wanted those 3 spots removed from there a long time ago, but they belong to the State, so we 
can’t really do much about it.  Okay.  That’s just not one accident waiting to happen.  That’s many 
accidents waiting to happen.  If you have senior citizens up there – with all due respect, one of these 
days I’ll be one too – there’s going to be more of a problem because there’s no way people can get out 
of there.  I don’t know who’s looking at this, but we need to seriously look at it.  And you want to talk 
about water.  Sometimes my water doesn’t come out as fast as I’d like it.  So, if you add 20 more units, 
it’s going to come out even slower, but I don’t care about that.  So, for 40 years I’ve been looking at that 
intersection and I have to tell you we can’t do anything with it.  There’s no room there.  There’s no room.  
You have people coming out.  You have the 2 sides that are coming out.  There’s no room for cars 
coming in.  You know, why even waste our time thinking about this.  Okay.  Why don’t you build a couple 
of houses up there and be done with it?  This is a waste of my time and everybody else’s time that’s in 
this room.  There’s no place for anything like that in that area.  Period. 
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Response 13:  The traffic report has been updated and includes analysis of Elm Street intersection.  
This intersection remains at level of service C.   
 
With regard to removing parking on NYS Route 94, this would require a petition to the Village Board.   
 
With regard to water pressure, the proposed water connection has been designed to meet all State and 
County Health Department requirements.  As part of the design, hydrant testing was performed in the 
immediate area to confirm adequate water demand and pressures during both peak flow and fire flow.   
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
Applause. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Over the years we saw several plans for building activity on this site, and I think 
there was one with 7 houses – 7 individual houses. 
Mark Siemers:  I believe so, but that was before me. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yeah.  Youngster.  Next.  Clif? 

 Clif Patrick, Town of Chester Historian, 117-119 Brookside Avenue, Chester, NY:  Ok.  My name is Clif 
Patrick.  My office is at 119 Brookside Avenue, which is in the Village.  And.  Quite a few comments.  
And there’s just about the…. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Clif – you are the historian for the Town of Chester, aren’t you? 
Clif Patrick:  I am.  Letter provided to the Planning Board and consultants.  This letter was read into the 
record by Clif Patrick and reviewed at the meeting (copy attached). 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you Clif 
Clif Patrick:  Yes, sir. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
Clif Patrick:  Oh, you’re welcome 
Planning Board Secretary:  Do you have another copy of that Clif? 
Clif Patrick:  Excuse me. 
Planning Board Secretary:  Do you have another copy of that?  I didn’t get that last page.  Do you have 
this PDF?  Can you email me a copy? 
Clif Patrick:  Sure 
 
Response 14:   Responses to EAF comments are as follows: 
 
D.1.h.:  Stormwater ponds or other facilities are not considered impoundments.  Village Engineer can 
verify.  
 
D.2.e.:  Stormwater is treated and attenuated in onsite stormwater dry pond.  Stormwater is released 
from the pond with direct connection into existing Village storm drainage in Elm Street.  There is no 
discharge to surface waters.  Also, with regard to the sediment trap, the SWPPP requires weekly 
inspection and after every significant rain event during construction.  Part of these inspections include 
maintenance and operation of sediment traps.  These reports will be submitted to the Village Engineer 
as well.  
 
D.2.l.:  Hours of operation are proposed.  Any changes requested by the Planning Board will be adhered 
to if reasonable.   
 
D.2.m.:  This project, along with all others, must meet the Village noise ordinance.  Any violation would 
be addressed by Code Enforcement.  
 
 
D.2.r.:  This question is for commercial and industrial projects only.  As this is a residential project, the 
question has been left blank.  
 
E.1.b.:  Impervious surface coverage was calculated for the entire property of 2.6 acres, which is 41.2%.  
This calculation was agreed to at a previous workshop with the Planning Board.  
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E.3.c.:  This question is answered automatically by the NYSDEC EAF Mapper.  The answer to the 
question is no, not yes.  As such, no other parts of the question require addressing.   
 
E.3.g.:   This issue is being finalized with SHPO, who must sign-off on the project prior to any approval.   
 
E.3.h.:  We have revised the EAF to include the referenced scenic or aesthetic resources within five (5) 
miles of the project site.  
 
Planning Board Secretary:  Thank you 
 

 Chairman Ramsdell:  Yes 
 Chris Battiato, Village of Chester Resident:   Chris Battiato, Village of Chester.  You guys stated earlier 

that the State wouldn’t allow access off 94 and that was in writing some time back.  Any idea how long 
ago that was? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I think more than 10 years and perhaps less than 15. 
Chris Battiato:  Ok.  Cause my question is if they don’t have access from their own – from the only 
deeded access to the property cause the State won’t give it to them, uh, Mr. Sorrentino bought a land 
locked piece of property.  Because the State won’t allow them to come in the only true access he really 
has.  That’s all. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  And just to expand on that a little bit.  This property had another lot that extended 
up to the street in the back. 
Chris Battiato:  The previous owner sold it 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yes 
Chris Battiato:  Yeah, so the only access to that lot it was allowed….  They built a house on Highland 
Avenue and if the State doesn’t allow them to come in on their only deeded access to the property, he 
bought a land locked piece of property. 
 
Response 15:  Property is not landlocked.  There is access to NYS Route 94, but not adequate for this 
project.  Adding the additional lot from Elm Street allows for adequate access.  It was always intended to 
purchase additional property for access, that parcel was purchased after the purchase of the main 
parcel.  
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Ok. 
Chris Battiato:  That’s all I’m saying because that was….  If it went back 10 years ago, he’s only owned 
the property for, I think he said 5 years.  That was….  He should have known that when he bought the 
property. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 

 Patti Salerno, Village of Chester Resident:  I have something.  Patti Salerno, Village of Chester resident.  
I’m also part of the Comprehensive Plan Committee and part of our Comprehensive Plan is to keep the 
values in the Village of Chester and we’ve kind of established a vision statement and I’m going to read it 
because I think that kind of sums up why we’re all sitting here in this room today.  It’s not published yet.  
We’re still working (inaudible)….  in progress, but, um.  So, the vision statement that we’ve created for 
the Comprehensive Plan is: 
 
“With this Comprehensive Plan, the Village of Chester establishes a vision, both short-term and long-
range, for the future of our municipality, one that roots in the recognition and reinforcement of shared 
values, interests, benefits of all residents. Primary among these values is the belief that the Village 
enjoys many distinctive features, both geographically and socially, that makes this an outstanding place 
to live. These features must be nurtured and protected to ensure an ongoing quality of life consistent 
with smart growth, a safe and healthy environment, and a balanced socio-economic fabric. Among these 
features are: 

 A valuable inventory of historic buildings that contribute to the character and the overall identity of the 
Village;   No effect 
 

 An extraordinary and vibrant agricultural district that reflects both our history and our future; No effect  
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 A diverse population comprised of a variety of cross-section of social, economic and ethnic 
backgrounds;  Addition of 20 senior housing units adding approximately 30 senior citizens to the 
community. 
 

 A robust commercial/economic platform that supports the environmentally sound ways, both tourism 
and the needs of the local population;  No effect 
 

 A healthy network of municipal parks, offering a wide range of recreational activities;  The project does 
not eliminate parkland and adds on-site recreation facilities for seniors, including community building.  

 

 A harmonious blend of housing options, with an emphasis on residential homes to encourage financial 
and emotional investment in the community.  Additional of 20 senior residential housing units. 

 
“Our Vision for the Village of Chester for our future, our agricultural farmland is productive and protected, 
the integrity of our historic building stock is preserved, business districts revitalized, housing 
opportunities expanded, and overall quality of life is enhanced. So, in the coming years, we: 
 

 Establish and revise the necessary Village Code, including the Zoning Code, and reinforce the 
Comprehensive Plan's goals;  Not applicable 
 

 Protect the integrity of the Village, the black dirt farmland, public parks, and our natural resources by 
carefully managing changes in land use;  No effect  
 

 Preserve historic buildings, culture and civic institutions, open space, and the integrity of our 
residential neighborhoods;  No effect  
 

 Enhance our business districts to create vibrant centers for civic engagement;  No effect  
 

 Promote a healthy lifestyle through the adoption of complete street policies;  Not applicable 
 

 Ensure the sustainable land use patterns that is more resilient to natural disasters;   Not applicable  
 

 Provide sustainable public infrastructure and services to meet growing community needs in a cost-
effective manner;  Not applicable  
 

 Increase housing opportunities for all age groups and income levels;  Addition of 20 senior housing 
units.  
 

 Set quality design standards to ensure that new land use enrich the community aesthetics and are in 
harmony with the existing fabric of the Village of Chester.”   Twenty (20) senior housing units in 
existing residential neighborhood.   

 
So, I’d like that to be part of the consideration that the Board decides to make this plan go forward.  
We’ve worked pretty hard over the past year or so to put in a Comprehensive Plan that encompasses 
every resident of this Village and everybody who visits here or works here or does business here and 
this is just another component of if this goes through and gets approved that the builder holds up to that 
standard of what we’re trying to build here in the Village.  So, that’s all I wanted to mention. 
 
Response 16:  We believe this project meets the goals of the Comprehensive Plan.  We have provided 
comments above for each “feature” of the Comprehensive Plan, where applicable.   
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 

 Leslie Smith, 117 Brookside Avenue, Chester, NY:  On page 2 of the EAF, the SEQRA EAF, it has a 
question that’s under C.2(a) Do any municipally-adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive 
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plans include the site where the proposed action would be located?  And no is checked off.  However, 
as a few people have mentioned, we have been working on a Comprehensive Plan that a 
Comprehensive Plan Committee was established June 12th in 2017, so it’s 2 years coming up.  I am the 
Chairperson of a subgroup – the Historic Preservation, Community Character, Design Guidelines, 
Aesthetics group.  And there’s 10 people in our group.  And, at the very first meeting, I brought a map.  
We have proposed 3 Historic Overlay Districts for the Village and, um, this is a map that shows them.  
The project that we are talking about tonight – the Senior Citizen Housing is right in this section, which is 
the Uptown Historic Overlay District.  The pink is the Downtown and the aqua color one is West Chester, 
but we are just talking about this neighborhood here, which is the – in the uptown proposed as part of 
our Comprehensive Plan.  Now, all the Comprehensive Plan meetings have been open to the public.  
They’ve been going on for 2 years.  This is the original map of the neighborhood that we’re talking 
about.  It was sub-divided in 1890.  It’s a sub-division by Joseph Durland and George M. Roe and 
almost all the houses in this neighborhood are over 100 years old, the exception being EJ’s, which was 
built in 1947, and Peterson’s, which was rebuilt because it was burned in a fire and that’s 2018.  All the 
other houses are over 100 years old.  So, it’s just, you know, very rare that you get a neighborhood 
which has not been – you know, that still has its historic fabric and the whole point of the Historic 
Overlays is to preserve the entire neighborhoods, not so much as spotlighting a particular property, 
although the Uptown Historic Overlay does contain the Yelverton Inn, the 1854 Presbyterian Church and 
the Durland store and those are listed on the National Register.  It does contain those, but it also has all 
the supporting structures.  It’s the oldest area of the Village.  And removing the house at 8 Elm Street 
and just putting pavement on that lot would be a very negative impact, not only to the adjoining 
properties, but also to the entire neighborhood, I feel.  And demolition is forever, so once it’s gone we 
lose another piece of our character of our Village. 

 
Response 17:  At the time of the environmental assessment form was completed (and currently) there 
was and is no Comprehensive Plan to justify checking “yes”.  Historic overlay districts referenced are 
proposed so are not applicable.  The project also will have a sign-off from NYS SHPO.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Yes? 

 Alex Batane, Village of Chester Resident:  Just a quick question.  The entrance to this property, in and 
out, is called a driveway.  What constitutes a driveway?  Is it a road or is it a driveway?  Because what 
we’re doing – that property is landlocked.  The only exit for that property is in the back on Highland 
Avenue and the other side in the front on 94 is now prohibited by the State, so does that mean that we 
can just take and remove a house and build a driveway for 20 units?  Or is that a road?  Is it allowed to 
build a road?  Are we allowed to build a road?  Are we re-inventing the wheel here?  Why are we doing 
that?  So, what is it?  A driveway or a road?  His question.  Engineer.   
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yes, we’ll…. 
Alex Batane:  Is it a driveway or a road? 
Mark Siemers:  It’s an access drive 
Alex Batane:  Pardon me 
Mark Siemers:  It’s an access drive 
Alex Batane:  Drive.  How many pieces of dwelling is allowed for a driveway?  Is the road going into 
Whispering Hills a driveway?   
Mark Siemers:  I don’t know the answer to that.  I don’t know what answer you’re looking for from me. 
Alex Batane:  What I’m asking …. 
Mark Siemers:  But I would ask that you ask the Board the question, and I will address the answers back 
to the Board. 
Alex Batane:  Well, you know, the reason I’m asking you is because they may not know it, but obviously, 
if you’re the engineer, you should.  So, what constitutes a driveway?  Is it 1 dwelling or 20 dwellings?  
Because now we’re feeding an area with more than 1 building on it.  With more than 1 home on it.  So, if 
a driveway is for 1 home, or 2 or maybe 3, then we have to build a road to access this property.  And 
now we’re going against what the laws are because it’s land locked.  So, if we start moving houses all 
around, then we can do whatever we want.  Then why even have a Board?  Why even have plans?  
So.... 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I thank you for your comment.  This is going to be one of the elements of the 
response. 
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Alex Batane:  Ok 
 
Response 18:  The entrance to the project is indicated as an access drive, not a road.  A road is typically 
owned by a municipality or private, but run by an HOA.  An access drive is owned in one (1) entity.  
Although the construction specification maybe similar, there is no definition of access drive, driveway or 
road in the Village Zoning Code.  There is a definition for “street”, which states “A way for vehicular 
traffic, whether designated as a street, highway, parkway, throughway, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, 
place or however else designated. The term “street" includes the land between the street right-of-way 
lines, whether improved or unimproved, and may comprise pavements, shoulders, gutters, sidewalks, 
planted strips, parking areas and other areas within such street lines.”   
 
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 

 Patti Salerno, Village of Chester Resident:  Can I ask a question about the driveway?  Is the driveway 
considered two ways?  So, you would have in and out?  So, will it have an in and an out and a drive.  Is 
that just one way or one car at a time?  Is kind of the question I’m asking. 
Mark Siemers:  No, it would be in and out. 
 

 EJ Szulwach, Village of Chester Resident:   Might that driveway have a name?  Like a street name? 
 

Response 19:  Emergency services will determine whether or not a name is required and will also 
assign 911 numbers.   

     
Mark Siemers:  I don’t believe so.  That would be a question that we would have to review with the 
highway department, but I don’t believe it would. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Ok 
 

 Elizabeth Reilly, Village of Chester Resident:  When E911 lettering was put in place or numbering, 
wasn’t anything more than 2 dwellings considered either a private road or not necessarily a drive? 
 
Response 20:  This refers to two (2) dwellings sharing a common driveway.  Any more than two (2) 
dwellings require a private road/drive.  This is an apartment complex with two (2) buildings, each 
building with an individual 911 number.  As mentioned above, emergency services makes final 
determination of name and 911 number.   
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I don’t know the answer to that and I’m….  You are referring to the access drive? 
Elizabeth Reilly, Village of Chester Resident:  Proposed, yes. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I don’t know.  We will look into that. 
 

 Gordon Shehab, 68 High Street, Chester, NY:   In the Zoning Code. it defines a street as a publicly 
dedicated right-of-way or a private right-of-way improved to meet Village street specifications for 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic, which affords the principal means of access to abutting properties.  I 
don’t know if that applies here or not, but I mention it just maybe to enlighten a bit.   
 
Response 21:  No, the access is not a street as defined in the Village Zoning Code.  That definition is for 
the street to be dedicated to the Village and intended to provide access to multiple lots.  

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Ok.  Thank you 
 

 Elizabeth Reilly, Village of Chester Resident:  The other question I have about affordable.  I don’t know 
what the definition is, but would these proposed units be affordable to this area?  Where our people – 
the people of Chester and surrounding areas could afford to live.  Seniors?  That’s a concern I have.  Or 
would it be for people moving up from Northern Jersey or?  This is the Village of Chester.  I think we 
need to think about our senior residents. 

 
Response 22:  The project is not affordable housing, but market rate housing.   
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??  I think it’s market rate affordable  
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 

 Barbara McDonald, Village of Chester Resident:  Maybe I’m jumping ahead here a little bit.  This doesn’t 
have anything to do with what we’re discussing here, but the building on the corner of Academy and 94 
is empty and the yellow house next to it.  I understand they were recently sold.  Is that correct?  Maybe 
I’m wrong, but is there a possibility if they weren’t, that those could be torn down and multiple dwelling 
apartment building be put there, which would impact that intersection and this area even more? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I think I know what you’re talking about, and you’re almost reading my mind, but I 
wasn’t going to build an apartment building there, I was going to make a parking lot there.   
Barbara McDonald:  Thank you 
Chairman Ramsdell:  But, that’s on the south side of that intersection.  What I’ve heard is that it may 
have been purchased by a Hasidic buyer, but that’s just what I heard. 
Barbara McDonald:  Would they legally be allowed to tear those structures down and build multiple – an 
apartment building even larger than this one?  There’s quite a bit of property there. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Well, I couldn’t comment on exactly how big of a building could be built there, but 
they would have to consider parking. 
Barbara McDonald:  There already is a parking lot there of sorts next to the yellow house. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Is that part of their property?  I don’t think it is. 
Barbara McDonald:  I’m not sure – that’s what I’m asking.  I’m just putting it out there.  It would impact 
this intersection even more if that was possible. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Right.  That’s a whole other chapter 
Barbara McDonald:  Yes 
 
Response 23:  The applicant does not own or control that property and is not part of this application.   
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Yes.  I was waiting for you. 

 David Stevenson, 16 Elm Street, Chester, NY:   Regarding the road.  I’m calling it a road because it’s 
really just a matter of semantics.  Whatever you want to call it.  But the fact is what’s going to be there is 
30 feet wide.  It’s going to be one lane in, one lane out and chances are, for safety reasons, they’re 
going to put a yellow stripe down the middle.  So, for all practical purposes, it’s going to look like a road.  
Chances are the addresses for those people are going to have to be tied to a street name or something, 
so that access drive is going to have to be named, so it’s really going to….  If it looks like a duck and 
acts like a duck and sounds like a duck….  This is going to be a road.  It’s not a driveway.  I have a 
driveway and it’s just one lane in and my car goes in and then, you know, I make sure no-one’s coming 
out and I come back out.  That’s a driveway.  Two lanes going each way is not a driveway. 

 
Response 24:  The proposed access drive is 30’ wide and 2 lanes.  The width is required by code and 
for emergency vehicles.  The “driveway” referred to is typically considered for single family or two-family 
access.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  We could call it Quack Lane 
 

 Alex Batane, Village of Chester Resident:   And the problem we’re having right now is that everyone that 
comes to Main Street from Academy Avenue is confused because many times they don’t stop.  They 
just drive through because they’re confused, ok, so we have a lot of confusion at that intersection and 
we need to look at it very carefully.   
Chairman Ramsdell:  Which intersection are you? 
Alex Batane:  Pardon me? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Which intersection are you? 
Alex Batane:  When you come from Academy Avenue to Main Street / 94 there – at that intersection 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yeah. 
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Alex Batane:  The traffic on Academy Avenue sometimes doesn’t stop for Main Street.  Not because 
they’re confused – because they just don’t want to, but I’ve seen it happen many times, so we have a 
problem there to begin with.  We have a big problem there.  They don’t want to stop.  They’re driving too 
fast.  It’s 30 miles an hour.  I commented one time because one of the officers put a sign there for the 
speed limit.  Check the speed limit there and see what they come around that bend.  It’s never 30. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  I live there.  I know 
Alex Batane:  I was going to say why don’t you look out the window 
Chairman Ramsdell:  We’ve had some discussion about having a stop sign on Main Street as it’s 
coming from the cemetery so that we wouldn’t have that big hold up, but….  I don’t know.  Mark, you and 
I have talked about this, and there’s some difficulties. 
 
Response 25:  Response below by Mark Edsall, P.E., Planning Board Engineer.   
 
Planning Board Engineer Mark Edsall:   There were several different evaluations made of what could be 
done to that intersection, and none of the proposals fell in favor with the State DOT (Department of 
Transportation). 
 

 Patti Salerno, Village of Chester Resident:  And then if we’re considering senior housing, that same 
intersection, you’re talking about an older demographic population that may be walking around a lot 
more because you can walk to Shop Rite, you can walk to get your hair cut, you can walk to CVS, so 
that’s going to be a major – should be a major consideration. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Right.  Clif. 

 Clif Patrick, Town of Chester Historian, 117-119 Brookside Avenue, Chester, NY:   I just realized in 
looking at the access drive that there’s no provision for a sidewalk and, as Pat mentioned, there might 
be a lot of walking, so if there’s access, there should be walking access also.  They should be able to 
walk in and out to Elm especially if they’re going to walk downtown for dinner or something.  They might 
prefer to go out Elm rather than out onto Main Street directly.  That would mean even more impervious  

 
Response 26:  The site plan provides sidewalk from the project directly to Main Street, so that 
pedestrian access to Elm Street is not required.  This is a more direct access to existing shopping, etc.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  With a sidewalk next it, you mean. 
Clif Patrick:  Yeah 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Ok.  David. 

 David Stevenson, 16 Elm Street, Chester, NY:   So, I do just want to read some comments that just sort 
of summarize some of the other things that have been said today.  So, here we are again.  This project 
has been around in one form or another for about 4 decades and there is a reason why.  If this project 
was such a good idea, it would have been approved a long time ago, but it wasn’t because the same 
nagging issues cling to it.  We all know what they are – drainage, parking, lighting, intrusion into a 
residential neighborhood.  These problems still remain, and new ones are even still being discovered.  
And, really, the only fundamental difference between the last version of the project and this new version 
is the developer has re-arranged some of the units.  And, in the interim, the developer managed to 
convince the Village Board that it would be a good idea to reduce the minimum size lot for a senior 
housing apartment complex from 3 acres to 2.5 and to remove the requirement for elevators and ramps 
in a senior housing project.  Imagine no elevators or ramps in a senior housing project.  It seems 
inconceivable, which is why the resolution vote was a very tough and contentious 3 to 2 split.  It was 
hardly a resounding stamp of approval.  And even with a weakened senior housing law, this project still 
can’t adhere to the rules, so there’s a requirement, as some people have mentioned before, that says 
that the RS portion – that part there, the thin part – shall not be covered by more than 50% with 
impervious material.  If you do the math, Elmwood is covering 60% of the Elm Street lot with black top 
and that’s not allowed.  So, although we are now stuck with a weaker senior housing law, the solution is 
not to lower our standards even further to allow a deficient project to proceed, but to hold the line and 
require the basic things necessary to have a nice community that we want.  Look around this room.  
When was the last time you saw this board meeting room filled this way?  It was to discuss Elmwood.  
And the time before that it was to discuss Elmwood.  There’s a reason why we’re all here.  And, while 
we’re all getting our individual comments, I hope you’ll notice that we’re all speaking with a unified voice, 
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saying simply one thing.  That this is the wrong location for this project.  And you, the Planning Board, 
have the authority and the tools at your disposal to enforce this decision.  The Zoning Code is filled with 
numbers, but there are many areas where things aren’t so concrete, where you’re asked to interpret and 
give an opinion.  Here’s another passage from the Zoning Code specifically for senior housing permits.  
(§ 98-24 Guiding principles and standards) In authorizing any use, the Planning Board shall take into 
consideration the public health, safety and general welfare, the comfort and convenience of the public in 
general and of the residents of the immediate neighborhood in particular.  The proposed use shall be in 
harmony with the appropriate and orderly development of the district in which it is situated and will not 
be detrimental to the orderly development of adjacent properties.  That’s not a one-time passage.  
Those words and similar ones are repeated 11 times in the Village Code.  So, it’s pretty darn important.  
Each time the Code repeats it, it’s another reminder to keep those guiding principles front and center 
and there is no way anyone can look at this project and claim that it won’t have a detrimental effect on 
Elm Street.  A quiet neighborhood that was established 155 years ago.  This gentleman right here, EJ 
Szulwach, lives across the street and has legitimate concerns about lights, car lights, flooding into his 
home.  The applicant’s solution is to hem Mr. Szulwach in behind a tall hedge that they would build on 
his property.  His home faces south, so now you’re going to isolate him in shadows, behind trees, like a 
hermit.  And the neighbors on either side.  Imagine trying to relax in your own back yard while cars go 
back and forth right next to you on a 2-lane road.  Literally 15 feet away.  In your own back yard.  So, 
speaking to the Board, most of you live in the vicinity of Cherry Heights, so you know what kind of nice 
neighborhood this is.  There is little doubt that this project would adversely affect not just the lives of the 
neighbors, but the value of those adjacent properties.  That’s taking money straight out of their pockets 
and that’s pretty much the definition of detrimental.  So, this project has been around a long time, but 
rather than it being long overdue for approval, it’s actually long overdue to tell them once and for all that 
cutting through Elm Street is just not a viable option.  Let’s not settle.  Let’s not accept a poor plan.  Let’s 
find a better solution to developing this parcel.  So, I ask you to please weigh the evidence and rightfully 
deny the application.  Thank you. 

 
Response 27:  The original project, which made application to the Planning Board in 2013 was a 
standard apartment complex.  After many years of review, the Planning Board determined that access 
through the RS portion of the property was not allowed because apartments were not allowed in the RS 
Zone.  The project was then changed to a senior housing apartment complex which is allowable in both 
the B-1 and RS Zones.   
 
With regard to the issues mentioned:  Drainage:  a full Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
has been prepared to provide both a reduction in peak runoff off-site, as well as treatment for water 
quality.  Parking:  A total of 45 parking spaces have been provided for 20 units (1.5 spaces per unit plus 
0.75 spaces per unit for guests) which is the requirement under the Village Zoning Regulations.  
 
Elevators are not required under the building code.  Any handicap accessible units will be on the first 
floor.  This will be an “active adult” senior housing project (55 years of age and older) not a nursing 
home type facility, so elevators to the second floor are not required to provide ADA compliance.  
 
For senior housing use, the bulk requirements allows 75% impervious coverage in the B-1 zone an 50% 
impervious coverage in the RS zone.  The overall impervious surface coverage has been calculated at 
41.2%.  
 
A 20 unit senior housing project is in harmony with the neighborhood.  It is a residential use which is 
allowed in both the B-1 and RS zones.   
 
Elm Street is a residential street and the proposed access drive will generate residential traffic only with 
no commercial traffic.  The access drive itself will look like a typical neighborhood street intersection.  
 
Any hedge or vegetation proposed will be to mitigate headlights only which are required.  This 
vegetation to be no more than 4’ in height.  
 

https://www.ecode360.com/10487885?highlight=housing,permit,permitted,senior,senior%20housing&searchId=2516558795624314#10487996
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The applicant has reached out to adjoiners on Main Street for access, but was unable to acquire any 
properties.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Yes. 

 Brian Roth, 6 Elm Street, Chester, NY:   I live right next door.  I would like to confirm that, yeah, I am 
very concerned about that road coming right next to my property.  Because not only am I going to have 
the main road in front, but I have this second road coming down right next to my property.  And I’m a 
little worried about the construction while I sleep because I work overnights, so that construction is going 
to be going on prime time while I’m trying to get some sleep. 

 
Response 28:  The hours of operation for construction has been identified in the Environmental 
Assessment Form as follows: 
     6 a.m. to 6 p.m. Monday through Friday  
     7 a.m. to 6 p.m. Saturday  
     No hours on Sunday  
 
All construction will adhere to those hours or any modification to said hours made by the Planning 
Board.   

 
 Chester Resident (didn’t get her name):  And not only that – we live in the same house.  My son is 

disabled, and his bedroom is right where the road will be.  In his room.  His bedroom.  It’s safety.  We’re 
worried about safety. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 
Brian Roth:  I don’t know if the lot was taken a look at at all, but there’s a pretty sharp incline going from 
my property to the next, so are you going to have to build a retaining wall up against my property and 
how’s that going to affect the construction on his side? 
 
Response 29:  There is 1 retaining wall proposed which is approximately 150 feet and follows the 
adjoining property at the end of the westerly side of the access drive.  All construction of the retaining 
wall will be entirely within the property limits.  Details of the retaining wall can be found on sheet 10 of 
the site plan set.  
 
Chester Resident (didn’t get her name):  And all the animals – the wild animals at the back.  And my son 
is very sensitive to any noise as you can see. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yeah 
Chester Resident (didn’t get her name):  There will be a road busy where his room is. 
Brian Roth:   I own the property and it’s my understanding that is the only entrance and exit to this 
proposed site. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Vehicular, yes. 
Brian Roth:  So, every vehicle that is going to be visiting here is going to be coming up past my house.  
That is correct, yes? 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Yes.  Every comment that is made here will be in the record and, hopefully at our 
next meeting or certainly the one after, we’ll have responses.  So, I want everyone to know that and 
maybe we can have more chairs for the next time.   

 Bill Murray, 109 Main Street, Chester, NY:   I’ve lived on the corner of Main and Elm for over 20 years.  
The traffic has grown exponentially there.  I know they’ve done a traffic study, but I don’t think they did it 
during all hours, especially at 4:30 in the afternoon or after that when all the restaurants are open and 
people are going to and from sports and whatnot because I can barely get into my driveway because 
people are using it to turn around to try and find a spot on Main Street.  I’m sure Mr. Ostrer has the 
same problem.  It’s very congested in that area and the other thing is drainage.  There is uh….  I already 
have water coming down my driveway and into my backyard and down into the private road behind me 
and it’s washing away that road.  Whether it’s coming down from 94 or coming down from Elm Street as 
well, you can’t tell me that a paved portion of that driveway, 30 feet wide isn’t going to have water 
coming off it and down to right across the street into EJ’s property or down into everybody else’s.   
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Response 30:  Traffic counts were conducted during the peak A.M. hours of 7:45 to 8:45 and peak P.M. 
hours of 4:30 p.m. to 5:30 p.m.  A full Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) has been 
prepared, which includes flow attenuation offsite.  The report shows no increase in runoff rate offsite, 
including to Elm Street.  Onsite stormwater from access drive will have direct connections to existing 
storm drains in Elm Street.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Yes. 
 

 Bill Peterman, 11 Elm Street, Chester, NY:  I just want to piggyback on the safety issues too.  As it is 
now, my wife and me, we have to park our car towards the end of our driveway or put our garbage cans 
out because on a weekend, it’s just people coming in, pulling in to turn around and get back out to Main 
Street for the restaurants, I’m assuming, or when we have things going on on Main Street.  So, for them 
to sit out, play outside on the weekend  
Jennifer Peterman:  Our children 
Bill Peterman:  Yeah, not us.  The only way we feel safe is we have to block it off just so they can play in 
there because we’ve tried to do other things and people just pull right in and that’s without a 2-lane road 
directly across the street from our house.  We have our neighbors – there’s like 10-12 kids within, what, 
500 feet.  Everyone’s riding their bike up and down that street.  It’s just going to be a hazard.  They’re 
not going to be able to go outside anymore.  They’re going to have to play in the back yard.  I don’t see 
any way around that.  It’s just totally going to take out the whole bike path.  They play with their bikes on 
that street.  They all do.  And now they’re not going to be able to do that anymore. 
 
Response 31:  The existing sidewalk along Elm Street extends from Main Street to approximately 50 
feet beyond the access drive.  That existing sidewalk will be maintained with the exception of the 
crossing of the access drive with the crosswalk.  All traffic from the project along Elm Street will include 
existing sidewalk which pedestrians and bicycles will utilize.  Portions of Elm Street with no sidewalk will 
have no traffic from the project site, as most vehicles will exist left toward Main Street.    
 
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 
 
??:   Bill, I have to correct you.  They ride the bicycle on the sidewalk and the sidewalk will be 50-feet 
narrower or less long if that thing goes through on – what is it – 8 Elm Street. 
 

 Patti Salerno, Village of Chester Resident:  I’d like to come back to if a car is parked on the street in that 
area, you can pass with 1 car, you can’t pass with 2.  So, that’s another concern that if we’re going to 
have additional volume on that street where 1 car can really only pass through at a time if there’s a car 
parked in the street.  And with the school buses that go through that street.  And we do have a huge 
community park that a lot of baseball games are being played on and I know that the High School field 
behind Maple Avenue has contracted out to Frozen Ropes, so there’s, on the weekends, lots of 
tournaments being played over there and that’s just going to add to the traffic and the volume that 
comes in to our community already and then into this neighborhood for people to park in.  That’s, again, 
another concern, but not this one, but it shows the volume that is already on that street. 

 
Response 32:  On-street parking is a Village issue, and out of control of the applicant.  Any exisiting on-
street parking issues can be addressed with signage and enforcement.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Ben. 
 

 Ben Ostrer, 111 Main Street, Chester, NY:   Further on what Ms. Smith said about the context of the 
historic neighborhood:  given that all those houses, except for the 2 that were identified, date back 150 
years, some of them.  Removing that house at 8 does change the context for all the houses that 
surround it and context in a historic area is very, very important.  What the house next door to you looks 
like – you know, that it’s not painted in yellow polka dots is very, very important.  And removing the 
house is, as they said, forever, and I think giving permission to remove a piece of the historic 
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neighborhood would be a real shame to permit them to do that.  There may be some other engineering 
way that they can figure it out, but to make the neighbors that surround that house suffer by losing the 
context for their houses is irreplaceable, and I think that’s something that the Board, based upon what’s 
listed in the Zoning Ordinance that Mr. Stevenson quoted, I think that’s really a lynch pin to what they’re 
asking this Board to approve and that is to denigrate one of the oldest neighborhoods in the Village, and 
I think it calls for you to say no. 

 
Response 33:  The project requires sign off from the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO).  This 
includes the review of both historic and archeogical sites.   
 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Yes. 
 

 Ron Decicco, 12 Walnut Street, Chester, NY:   Good evening.  I am soon to be a 25-year resident of the 
Village of Chester.  I am staunchly opposed to the 20-unit apartment complex known as Elmwood, as 
the Notice of Public Hearing rather simply states.  The proposal is riddled with problems, among them 
traffic, pedestrian safety, drainage, lighting, zoning and the effect on the neighborhood.  Traffic and the 
neighborhood are my chief concerns.  Adding traffic to Elm Street would destroy this serene area, 
change its character forever.  In addition, the project would add traffic to Main Street, which, at times, is 
extremely heavy.  The Academy, Main Street intersection is a horror show at times.  It boggles the mind 
to think of what it could become.  The apartments proposal moreover is simply a poor fit.  It would 
change the pastoral nature of the neighborhood and the Village.  In its place would be traffic, congestion 
and noise.  Proceeding with this project would be akin to bringing an elephant to kindergarten class.  
Downsizing the project isn’t the answer either.  That would be akin to bringing a baby elephant to 
kindergarten class.  While I can and do empathize with the owner of this land locked property, the 
proposed Elmwood Park Apartment complex clearly is not the solution to his problem.  What it is, is a 
dud.  Thank you. 

 
Response 34:  Traffic generated from the project during the peak A.M. hours would be four (4) vehicles 
entering and eleven (11) vehicles exiting, and during the peak P.M. hours, nine (9) vehicles entering and 
six (6) vehicles existing.  These low volumes do not affect existing intersections as per updated traffic 
study.   
 
All traffic from the project along Elm Street includes an existing sidewalk on Elm Street for current 
residence, as well as project residences.  Also, a sidewalk is proposed from the project site directly to 
Main Street.  
 
A full SWPPP has been completed to address potential drainage impacts.  There will be no additional 
runoff offsite.  
 
Lighting is in conformance with Village Zoning reviewed by Village Engineer.  The lighting plans clearing 
shows no light spilling offsite.  Project also meets all zoning requirements.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you.  Anybody else?  Sometimes you have to ask. 

 
 David Stevenson, 16 Elm Street, Chester, NY:   What I’m a little concerned about is – what – some of 

the concerns that we’ve been raising are that this needs to be judged in the context of the historical 
nature of the Village and when these concerns are turned over to the applicant and then they deliver 
their response.  I’m concerned that their response is going to be no, there won’t be any impact and I 
want to understand how the Village Board – the Planning Board can counter-balance that by saying well 
no yes there is.  If you allow the applicant to sort of self-report what the impact or the what the impact is 
going to be, you kind of know what they’re going to say that it’s not going to be detrimental, so I just 
hope you’ll keep that in mind.  I know you all think for yourselves, but having the applicant send 
something in – a response is a self-policing document, which may not be effective. 

 
Response 35:  These public hearing responses will be prepared and reviewed by the Planning Board 
and their consultants.  If additional information is required or questions, the applicant will provide.   
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Chairman Ramsdell:  I believe we need to think on behalf of all of us. 
David Stevenson:  Thank you 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Well, thank you very much for…. 
 

 Thomas Keahon, 8 Oak Street, Chester, NY:   I just wanted to say one thing.  I was sitting, listening to 
all this and I looked around the room.  Being born and raised in Cherry Heights.  I know you raised a 
family in Cherry Heights too, so I know this means a lot to you back there.  But I also want to talk to the 
room about the pillars of our community and in this room helped support me growing up as a kid and 
they’ve invested a lot of time in the community.  Mr. Stoddard, Betty Ann, EJ.  I used to run down the 
street and get sodas out of his garage as a kid.  Run up and down Elm Street to Oak Street to Elm 
Street.  All day long.  He was always there to help us, but we’re bordering on destroying everything 
they’ve worked for, so I just want you guys to consider that because they’ve invested in our community 
to make it great and I’d like to keep it that way. 

 
Response 36:  The project applicant is not intent on destroying anything “they’ve worked for”.  This is a 
residential project which will add senior citizens to an existing neighborhood and community.   

 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Thank you 
 
 

 Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg:  Can I suggest that we continue the Public Hearing to permit 
the applicant to make a response. 
Chairman Ramsdell:  Sounds like a good idea to me.  The rest of the Board? 
Planning Board Member Vinny Rappa:  I’ll make a motion 
Planning Board Member Anthony LaSpina:  I’ll second 
Chairman Ramsdell:  It’s been moved and seconded that we continue the Public Hearing.  All those in 
favor.  The members voted. 

 

At the suggestion of Planning Board Attorney Harold Pressberg, *MOTION was made by Member LaSpina, 

second by Member Rappa, to CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING.  Motion passed 5-0. 

 

**** REGULAR MEETING **** 
Chairman Ramsdell opened the Regular Meeting at 8:42 PM. 
 
MINUTES 

Review Draft May 2019 Planning Board Meeting Minutes.  *MOTION made by Member LaSpina, second by 

Member Jankelunas, to ACCEPT THE MAY 2019 MINUTES AS DRAFTED.  Motion passed 5-0. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
None 
 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER REPORT 
Presented by John Orr (copy attached) 
 Member Jankelunas asked when the Hudson Valley Federal Credit Union would be completed. 

CEO John Orr advised he believes they are planning on being open by December 2019. 
 
WORK SESSION REVIEW 
As there was no Work Session held in June, there were no projects to review. 
 
PROJECTS FOR REVIEW 
1. Project # 13-08  Project Name:  Elmwood Park Apartments 

Applicant/Owner:  John Sorrentino 
Location:   Elm Street (SBL 111-2-7.1 & 3 / RA-B1 Zones) 
Re:    Proposed construction of a Senior apartment complex  
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Planning Board Engineer Mark Edsall advised he has 3 pages of notes which, he hopes, will match the 
minutes, so there was no review of his comments for this meeting.  The applicant was provided with those 
comments for review (copy attached).   
 
General discussion held regarding: 
 Moving forward with the Public Hearing review and responses; 
 CEO John Orr advised the applicant is proposing crab apple trees for the front of the buildings by the 

sidewalks and that’s been problematic as crab apple trees tend to drop their fruit.  It’s problematic for 
sidewalk maintenance and, especially in a senior complex, with slippage possibilities.  He requested 
the applicant look into an alternate; 

 Mark Siemers advised the reason they use crab apple trees was to try to keep them shorter, so 
there was access, but now that they’re 2 story buildings, they will look into replacing them. 

 Mark Siemers asked if the Public Hearing would continue in July or be held over to August, depending 
on availability of the minutes and if they have enough time to prepare their response; 

 Chairman Ramsdell advised the Public Hearing would continue when the applicant submitted their 
response by the appropriate submittal date, with enough time to publish the Public Hearing notice. 

 
2. Project # 19-04  Project Name:  3 Brookside Avenue Site Plan Amendment 

Applicant/Owner:  MYLU Properties LLC 
Location:   3 Brookside Avenue (115-2-1 / B2 Zone) 
Re:    Site Plan Amendment – Change of Use from Spa to Office   

 

John Queenan, P.E. with Lanc & Tully, provided an overview of the project: 
 Proposed project converts existing spa into office space; 
 1st floor of building will be 2,400 square feet of office space and unfinished basement will be an 

accessory use to the office space – no outside tenants/renters will utilize the unfinished basement; 
 The site has been redesigned to accommodate the required parking; 
 Additional handicap parking striping has been added to the site plan; 
 The dumpster has been relocated. 
 
Planning Board Engineer Mark Edsall's comments were reviewed (copy attached) and general discussion 
held regarding: 
 As it was confirmed the unfinished basement is for the existing tenant only, the applicant was 

requested to put a note on the plan restricting the basement from any other use; 
 A floor plan of the unfinished basement is not required as long as the above note is on the site plan; 
 The proposed sign will be reviewed by the Code Enforcement Officer as part of the permit process; 
 The handicap parking issues noted in Planning Board Engineer Mark Edsall’s comments were 

resolved. 
 

*MOTION was made by Member Jankelunas, second by Member Rappa, to WAIVE THE 
REQUIREMENT OF A PUBLIC HEARING.  Motion passed 5-0. 

 

*MOTION was made by Member Rappa, second by Member Jankelunas, to DECLARE THIS A TYPE 
II ACTION UNDER SEQRA AS PROVIDED IN 6 NYCRR 617.5(c)(7), AND, THEREFORE, 
REQUIRES NO FURTHER ACTION UNDER SEQRA.  Motion passed 5-0. 

 

*MOTION was made by Member Winters, second by Member LaSpina, to GRANT CONDITIONAL 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 

1. REVISIONS TO THE SITE PLAN ACCORDING TO MARK EDSALL’S COMMENTS; 
2. APPROVAL BY MARK EDSALL OF THE FINAL SITE PLAN; 
3. SITE INSPECTION BY CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER; 
4. PAYMENT OF ALL FEES.  Motion passed 5-0 
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GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
 

*MOTION was made by Member Rappa, second by Member LaSpina, to ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION 
FOR LEGAL ADVICE.  Motion passed 5-0. 

 

*MOTION was made by Member Winters, second by Member LaSpina, to END EXECUTIVE SESSION.  
Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Chairman Ramsdell asked if anyone had anything else to discuss and as there were no other comments, 

*MOTION was made by Member Rappa, second by Member LaSpina, to ADJOURN THE MEETING. 

Motion passed 5-0.  Meeting adjourned at 9:20 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Sandra VanRiper 
Planning Board Secretary 


